
(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

SIL
O

SIL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
TL
OC
K

MA
TL
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GGRR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

SOU THEASTSOU THEAST

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

SU BLETTSU BLETT

SANFORDSANFORD

PIONEERPIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANSASARKANSAS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MITCHELLMITCHELL

(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

SIL
O

SIL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
TL
OC
K

MA
TL
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GGRR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

SOU THEASTSOU THEAST

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

SU BLETTSU BLETT

SANFORDSANFORD

PIONEERPIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANSASARKANSAS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MITCHELLMITCHELL

0 1 2Miles

¿¿1

¿¿2

PLANNING & ZONINGPLANNING & ZONING
                           September 7, 2016                           September 7, 2016

¿¿3

¿¿4

¿¿5


This product is for in form ation al purposes an d m ay n ot have been  
prepared for or be suitable for legal, en gin eerin g, or surveyin g 

purposes. It does n ot
represen t an  on -the-groun d survey an d represen ts on ly the 
approxim ate relative location  of property boun daries. 

1. Replat – A.J. Russell Addition
2. Prelim in ary Plat – Southw in d Meadow s Addition
3. PD16-15 Costco Wholesale Liquor Addition
4. PD13-16R1 Liv + Arlin gton
5. PD12-17R2 In tern ation al Leadership of Texas



   
 
 
 

AGENDA 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

Work Session 

     Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

                 101 West Abram Street  

 
 

September 7, 2016 
4:00 P.M. 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION OF REGULAR SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
III. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE MEETING DATES AND TIMES 
 

(a) Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting on September 21, 
2016 
 

(b) Planning and Zoning Commission Two-Hour Bus Tour –  
September 30, 2016 

 
 
IV. ADJOURN 



 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Regular Session 

   Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

101 West Abram Street  

 
 

September 7, 2016 
5:30 P.M. 

 
 
Meeting order is subject to change per the Commission’s Discretion 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Minutes of August 17, 2016 P&Z Meeting 
 

 

III. PLAT CONSENT AGENDA AND PUBLIC HEARING FOR PLATS 

 

A. Replat – A.J. Russell Addition – Lots 2C-7R2 and 2C-7R3, (Zoned 
CC); generally located south of US Highway 287 and west of 

Willow Hollow Lane with the approximate address being 4750 
Willow Hollow Lane. 

B. Preliminary Plat – Southwind Meadows Addition, Lots 1 through 

59, Lots 60X through 64X, Block A; Lots 1 through 16, Lot 17X, 
Block B; Lots 1 through 41, Lot 42X Block C; Lots 1 through 10, 

Block D; Lots 1 through 8, Block E; Lots 1 through 10, Lot 11X 
through 14X, Block F (Zoned “PD”); generally located south of 

Ragland Road and west of South Watson Road with the 
approximate addresses being 944, 1000, 1010, 1020, and 1030 

Ragland Road. 

 

 
 

 
 

 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 9-7-16 Page 2 

 

IV. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ZONING CASES 

A. Zoning Case PD16-15 

(Costco Wholesale Liquor Addition – 600 West Arbrook 
Boulevard) 

 

Application to change the zoning on approximately 15.590 acres 
from Community Commercial (CC) to Planned Development (PD) 

for limited Community Commercial (CC) uses plus a Package 
Liquor Store, with a Development Plan; generally located south 

of West Arbrook Boulevard and east of Matlock Road. 

B. Zoning Case PD13-16R1 
(Liv + Arlington – 1001 South Center Street; 206 East Mitchell 

Street; 107 and 109 Hosack Street) 
 

Application for approval of a revision to the development plan on 

approximately 4.51 acres currently zoned Planned Development 
(PD) for Multi-Family uses, with a Development Plan; generally 

located south of East Mitchell Street and east of South Center 
Street. 

C. Zoning Case PD12-17R2 
(International Leadership of Texas – 4950 South Bowen Road) 

 

Application for approval of a revision to the development plan on 
approximately 40.812 acres currently zoned Planned 

Development (PD) for all Residential Single-Family 15 (RS-15) 

uses, with a Development Plan; generally located west of South 
Bowen Road and south of West Bardin Road. 

 
 

V. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A. Reports from Boards/Commissions Liaisons 
 

B. Reports from Staff and Announcements 
 

C. Discussion of Future Meeting Dates and Times  
 

 
VI. ADJOURN 



 

Staff Report 
 

Replat (A.J. Russell Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-7-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider a Replat on the consent agenda. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant, HPcivil Engineering, proposes a replat for 7.799 acres of the Lot 2C-7R of the 
A.J. Russell Addition.  The replat would subdivide one lot into two lots, 2C-7R2 and 2C-7R3.  
A Flood Study was submitted showing the limits of the ultimate 100-year storm event, and 
the limits of the FEMA 100-year floodplain, and determining that the development will not 
increase the downstream water surface elevation.  There are no known development plans 
for the property at this time. 
 
Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 
complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Property Location: Generally located south of US Highway 287 and west of 
Willow Hollow Lane with the approximate address being 
4750 Willow Hollow  

 
 Sector:   Southwest 

 
 Council District:  2 

 
Current Zoning: Community Commercial (CC) 
 

ATTACHED  i. Location Map 
 ii. 11 x 17 Plat 

 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks, AICP 
Planning Manager, Land Development Principal Planner, Land Development 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov 

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Lot 2C-7R3

Lot 2C-7R2

VG

PD

CC PD

PD10-4

P88-09

US 287 HWY

SAILBOA

T CIR

0725004720

07240

07150

07200

04710

07300

07204

07100

04750

07000

07140

07001

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

i - 1Prepared: 8-11-2016

A.J. RUSSELL ADDITION
REPLAT

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 15075

Feet





Staff Report 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Consider a revised preliminary plat on the consent agenda. 

 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 

On May 20, 2015, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of Zoning 

Case PD15-1 requesting Planned Development (PD) for Residential Single-Family 5 (RS-5) 

and Community Commercial (CC) uses, with a Development Plan by a vote of 7-0-0. 

 

On August 4, 2015, City Council approved Planned Development PD15-1 by a vote of 8-0-0.  

 

On October 7, 2015, the Planning and Zoning Commission continued this Preliminary Plat to 

the November 4, 2015 public hearing, per the applicant’s request. 

On November 4, 2015, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat by 

a vote of 8-0-0. 

ANALYSIS 

The applicant, Lennar, represented by David Auginbaugh, proposes to plat 154 residential 

lots, one commercial lot, and 11 open space (“X”) lots from 48.21 acres of the Ralph Graves 

Survey, Abstract 569.  This application comes as a revision to the previously approved 

preliminary plat with a new developer and engineer of record.  The revised plat offers a 

slightly altered layout with an existing drainage channel to the west of the development to 

remain rather than the previous design, which included a box culvert.  

The plat is in substantial conformance with the approved zoning PD15-1 for this site.  

Amenity and open space lots will be held in common ownership and are to be maintained by 

a Property Owners Association.  The perimeter fencing and landscaping along Ragland Road, 

South Watson Road, and Southwind Drive are included in these lots.  The trail within the 

electric easement and the amenity lot are also included in common ownership.  

A flood study will be required for the land south of Southwind Drive prior to the approval of a 

final plat for that area.   

Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 

complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations of the Unified 

Development Code. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 
Property Location: Generally located south of Ragland Road and west of 

South Watson Road with the approximate addresses 

being 944, 1000, 1010, 1020, and 1030 Ragland Road.   

Sector: Southeast 

 
Council District: 3 

 
 

Preliminary Plat (Southwind Meadows) 

Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-7-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

Current Zoning: Planned Development (PD) for Residential Single-Family 5 

(RS-5) and Community Commercial (CC) uses, with a 

Development Plan.  

 
ATTACHED i. Location Map 
 ii. 11X17 Plat 

 

STAFF CONTACT(S) 

Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks, AICP 

Development Planning Manager Principal Planner 

Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 

817-459-6138 817-459-6514 

Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


SUP08-2

RE

GC

CC

RS-15

PD

RE

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD
PD

PD
RE

PD

PD

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-RS-5-CC

PD-RS-5-CC

BEEMAN DR

BASTROP DRDENALI DR

LOCKHART DR

SHADOWFAX DR

COLD CREEK DR

SOUTHWIND DR

RIVER BLUFFS DR
S W

AT
SO

N R
D

HW
Y 3

60
 SV

C 
RD

 N
B

WATER OAK DR

RAGLAND RD

09204

09211

00805
08408

00800

09300

08301

00808

09308

08403

09201

08409

09319

09312

00600

09303

09205

08414

09207

09307

08406

08410

09222

09203

09325

0932109310

09209

00975

0931100604

09306

08415

00811

00900

08407

09314

00710

00711

00810

00602

00701

00616

08405

09315

08419

00603
09302

08300

08411

09124

09218

09110

08401

09220

09212

09537

00646

09317
0949900601

09323

09301

08417

00809

09119
0911509114

00709 01010
09101

09248

09104

00833

09125

09109
01020

09246

09103

09535

09121
09117

09305

09127

09111

09106

09217

00944

01001

01000

00700

09123

09107
09100

09541

08150

09136

09208
09206

09216

09130

09223

09214
09133

09105

09226

09108

09309

09221

09215

09241

01300

09249

01120

09210

09219

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 09-11-2015

SOUTHWIND MEADOWS
REVISED PRELIMINARY PLAT

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 390195

Feet





 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-15 (Costco Wholesale Liquor Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-7-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-15, with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On April 5, 2000, Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of ZA00-16 to 
amend the zoning map to allow for the grocery sales use and the development of Costco 
Wholesale. 
 
On April 5, 2000, Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of SUP00-04 to 
allow for gasoline sales. 
 
On April 18, 2000, City Council approved first reading of ZA00-16 by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
On April 18, 2000, City Council approved first reading of SUP00-04 by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
On April 25, 2000, City Council approved ZA00-16 by a vote of 6-0-0.  
 
On April 25, 2000, City Council approved SUP00-04 by a vote of 6-0-0. 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 15.590 acres addressed at 
600 West Arbrook Boulevard, and generally located south of West Arbrook Boulevard and 
east of Matlock Road. 
 
Current zoning:  Community Commercial (CC) 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for limited Community Commercial (CC) 

uses plus a Package Liquor Store, with a Development Plan 
 
A ‘Package Liquor Store’ is only permitted in General Commercial (GC), Light Industrial (LI), 
and Industrial Manufacturing (IM) zoning districts.  Additionally, ‘Package Liquor Stores’ are 
prohibited in the area of the Interstate 20 corridor bounded by Cooper Street on the west, 
Arbrook Boulevard on the north, State Highway 360 on the east, and Bardin Road on the 
south.  This was also the case under the previous zoning ordinance, as the above described 
area was known as the Business Park Overlay.  Two zoning cases that added the ‘Package 
Liquor Store’ use were approved at locations within this corridor, prior to the adoption of the 
Unified Development Code: 
 

- PD13-21 Windstar Properties was approved in April of 2014 for what is currently 
Total Wines and More 

- PD14-2 3909 South Cooper Street was approved in August of 2014 for what is 
currently Spec’s Wines, Spirits and Finer Foods 

 
This rezoning request excludes some land uses currently permitted in the CC zoning district, 
as well as adds the ‘Package Liquor Store’ use.   
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Site History 
A zoning amendment to change the zoning on a portion of the lot from Business Park 
Overlay-Business (BP-B) to Business Park Overlay–Community Service (BP-CS) was 
approved in 2000.  This application gave the entire lot the same zoning designation, and 
allowed for the grocery sales use on site. A Specific Use Permit (SUP) was also approved to 
allow for gasoline sales as a secondary use on the northwest portion of the lot.  Running 
concurrently to the zoning amendment, a plat was filed to give the site its current 
configuration.   
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject site was developed in 2001 with an approximately 148,000 square foot Costco 
Wholesale Store, as well as a 6-pump gasoline sales canopy. A convenience store is not 
associated with the gasoline sales canopy.  As a result of the SUP actions during the 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, increased landscape setbacks were required 
adjacent to the gasoline sales portion of the site.  All site setbacks are planted with a mix of 
Live Oak and Shumard Oak trees. 
 
Development Plan 
The Development Plan is for an approximately 3,928-square-foot addition to the existing 
Costco Wholesale store.  The intention of this addition is to operate a Package Liquor Store.  
The proposed package liquor store will not open to the interior of the Costco store, and all 
exterior doors are covered with metal awnings similar to other awnings on the existing 
structure.  The proposed addition will match the existing split-faced concrete masonry block 
(CMU) walls, and the proposed banding and signage will also blend with the original 
building.   
 
The separate entry points to the proposed addition will allow it to operate based on the 
State laws regarding the allowed hours of operation for Package Liquor Stores, without 
causing any adverse changes to the operation of the existing Costco store.   
 
Landscaping and Screening 
The applicant is proposing to replace any trees or shrubs that are missing in order to bring 
the site back into compliance with the landscape package that was approved through the 
original site plan.  Additionally, the new parking lot islands will exceed the typical 
requirement of 50% vegetative cover other than turf grass.  The applicant is also proposing 
to increase the landscaping in the parking lot islands just to the west of the building, as well 
as in the large island off of the Matlock Road access point.  Overall, this will add over 7,000 
additional plants to the existing landscaping.   
 
Parking 
The existing parking lot contains approximately 750 parking stalls.  Required parking for the 
current use is calculated at 446 parking stalls.  With the additional 3,928 square feet of floor 
space, 457 parking stalls will be required.  While the site is over-parked at this time the 
proposed addition will reduce parking on site by approximately 29 stalls.  This comes out to 
an approximate count of 721 parking stalls once the project has been completed.   
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
North of the subject site are properties zoned CC developed with a bank and a medical 
imaging center, Residential Multi-Family (RMF-22) developed with a multi-family 
development, Residential Single Family (RS-7.2) developed with single family residences, 
and PD for a nursing home developed with a nursing home. The properties to the east and 



Page 3 of 3 

 

west of the subject site are zoned General Commercial (GC) and both are developed with 
office buildings. The properties to the south of the subject site are zoned CC developed with 
a bank and a multi-tenant shopping center and PD developed as the Arlington Highlands.   
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The proposed zoning change CC to PD for a package liquor store represents a minor change 
that is in keeping with the community convenience commercial uses that are envisioned as 
one use for Regional Activity Centers in the 2015 Comprehensive Plan, 99 Square Miles.  
The goals for Regional Activity Centers include developing special places that facilitate 
regional opportunities. Considering the goals for this area and the site’s location, the 
proposed zoning change to PD for a package liquor store is in general conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan and other relevant plans. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (5 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Bryan Isham 
Development Planning Manager Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6654 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

PD16-15  i-1 

Prepared:   8-5-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

Applicant: MG2 Corporation represented by Terry Odle  

 

Property Owner:  Costco Wholesale  

 

Sector Plan:  East 

 

Council District:  3 

 
Allowable Uses: Limited Community Commercial Uses plus Package Liquor Store 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted and commonly known as 

Lot 2R, Block 4 of the Highlands Addition.  The subject site is 

currently developed with a Costco Wholesale store and gasoline 

sales station. 

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

PD15-2 East Planned 

Development (PD) 

for Office 

Commercial (OC) 

uses plus an 

Independent Senior 

Living Facility, with a 

development plan 

Approved 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has two access points off West 

Arbrook Boulevard, one off of Matlock Road, and two off of 

Highlander Boulevard. 

  

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

West Arbrook 

Boulevard 

130 foot ROW 

4 lane divided 

major arterial 

120 foot ROW 

6 lane divided 

major arterial 

Highlander 

Boulevard 

70 foot ROW 

4 lane undivided 

major collector 

70 foot ROW  

4 lane undivided 

major collector 

Matlock Road 120 foot ROW 

6 lane divided 

major arterial 

120 foot ROW 

6 lane divided 

major arterial 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed zoning change will not significantly impact the 

adjacent roadway systems. 

 

Water & Sewer:  The existing site has water and sewer service. 



Case Information  
   

 

PD16-15  i-2 

Prepared:   8-5-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

Drainage: The site is located in the Johnson Creek drainage basin. The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain. No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 6, located at 2620 South Collins Street, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District 

 

 The proposed request is located in the Arlington Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owners Association 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Westador Addition 

Harold Patterson Community Association 

Scots Wood Estates Neighborhood Watch 

Southwest Arlington Property Owners (SWAPO) 

  Property Owners: 15 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD16-15   ii-1 

Prepared:   8-10-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

 

Allowable Uses: Planned Development (PD) for limited Community 

Commercial (CC) uses plus a Package Liquor Store 

 

Permitted – Art gallery or museum, Government 

administration and civic buildings, Philanthropic institution 

(other than listed), Religious assembly, Business school, Public 

or private school, University/college/seminary, Hospital, Medical 

or dental office or clinic, Community garden, Gasoline sales, 

Catering service, Restaurant, Restaurant/take-out and delivery 

only, Office/business or professional, Telemarketing call center, 

Day care center, General personal services (other than listed), 

Massage therapy clinic, Recreation/ indoor (other than listed), 

Major tourist attraction, General retail store (other than listed), 

Firearm sales, Second-hand goods store, Swimming pool/spa 

and accessory sales and service, Medical or scientific research 

laboratory, Electric utility substation, Radio or TV station or 

studio, Utility lines, towers or metering station, Package Liquor 

Store.  

 

Specific Use Permit – Hospital/psychiatric, Alternative 

Financial Institution, Hotel/limited service, Residence hotel, 

Banquet hall, Bowling alley, Gun range, Night club, Recreation 

general outdoor (other than listed), Gas well, Transit passenger 

terminal, Utility installation other than listed, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth towers 

>100 ft., Self-storage facility.  

 

Conditions – Kennel/commercial, Veterinary clinic, Motor 

vehicle rental, Financial services, Restaurant with drive-

through, Sidewalk café, Hotel/full service, Skating rink, Teen 

club, Theatre indoor, Building and landscaping materials and 

lumber sales, Nursery/garden shop or plant sales, Food 

processing, Custom and craft work, Telecommunication 

Facilities Building-mounted antennae and towers, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers 

≤100 ft., Wholesale Supply Business 

Excluded Uses: Halfway house, Nursing home, Domestic violence shelter, 

Mortuary/crematory/funeral chapel, Cemetery, Public park or 

playground, Crop production, Bail bond service, Tattoo parlor, 

Bingo hall, Billiard parlor, Private club/lodge/fraternal 

organization, Wedding chapel, Country club, Golf course, 

Marina, Pawn shop, Specialty paraphernalia sales, Wrecker 

service 

 



SUP93-5

SUP94-
2

SUP00-4

SUP05-3

PD

OC

CC
GC

RMF-22

GC

GC

PD

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

CC

CC

CC
NC

RMF-22
OC

CC

GC

GC

CC

PD

PD
GC

Z05-08/P05-08

P01-35
Z83-90/P-140

Z83-126/P-146R

PD15-2

CURTIS MATHES WAY

W ARBROOK BLV

HIGHLANDER BLV

MERCHANTS ROW

LIT
TL

ES
TO

NE
 D

R

CH
EN

EY
DR

PA
RK

ME
AD

 D
R

MA
TL

OC
K 

RD

03911

03951

00121

00111

03622

03520 00228 00226

00232

03628

03605

03624

03620

03522
00239

00237

03625

03603

03610

03623
03621

03618

00205 03606
00230

03609

03616

03604

00231

03611

00238
00234

00233

03602

00601

00750

03612

04001 00125

03530

00236

00235

00401

03751

03659

00705

03608

03600

03661

00703

00400

03627

00300

03626

00708

00701

00801

00720

00206

03801

00207
00202

00227
00208

00101

03614

00201

00211

03601

00203

00209

03615

00225

00707

03651

00715

03653

03641

00714

00719

03657

00717

03800

00600

00716

03619
03617

00718

03501
03607

00250

00700

00301

00135

04000

00710

00204
00210

00212

03640
00711

00599

/

LOCATION MAP
PD16-15

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 8-19-2016

PD FOR LIMITED CC USES PLUS A 
PACKAGE LIQUOR STORE, WITH
A DEVELOPMENT PLAN

BI

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries. 
0 275137.5

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-15 

South of West Arbrook Boulevard and east of Matlock Road  

  

View of adjacent single family residences across 

West Arbrook Boulevard.  View north 

View of adjacent office building.  View east. 

  

View of site and existing Costco Wholesale store.  

View south. 

View of adjacent office building across Matlock 

Road.  View west. 

  

 



EXISTING
OIL/WATER SEPARATOR

EXISTING
COMPACTOR

EXISTING
8'-0" HIGH SCREEN WALL

EXISTING
TRANSFORMER

EXISTING
RECEIVING

ARLINGTON
# 668

MG2. All rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced in
any form or by any means without permission in writing from MG2.

COSTCO WHOLESALE P R O P O S E D S I T E P L A N
A R L I N G T O N, T E X A S J U N E 7 , 2 0 1 6

600 W ARBROOK BLVD,
ARLINGTON, TX 76014

00-1350-13
JUNE 7, 2016

PROPOSED
SITE PLAN

DD11.01

0 12.5' 25' 50' 100'

VICINITY MAP

NOTES:
EXISTING CONDITIONS TO BE FIELD VERIFIED.

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

THIS PLAN HAS BEEN
PREPARED BY EDITING
PRELIMINARY DRAWING
PREPARED BY HODGES AND
ASSOC., INC. DATED: 2-17-00
PRELIMINARY PLAT FROM
WINDELMAN ENGINEERS
3-28-00

60'-0"

COSTCO WHOLESALE
999 LAKE DRIVE
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027

PROJECT DATA

PARKING DATA:

10' WIDE STALLS
PROPOSED PARKING PROVIDED:

NO. OF STALLS PER 1000 S.F.
OF BUILDING AREA:

TOTAL PARKING
HANDICAP STALLS
9' WIDE STALLS

BOUNDARIES
INFORMATION:

CLIENT:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

ZONING:

SETBACKS:

600 W. ARBROOK BLVD.
ARLINGTON, TX 96014

717 STALLS

4.7 STALLS

63 STALLS
16 STALLS

638 STALLS

5,126 S.F.
148,589 S.F.

143,463 S.F.

20

3,928 S.F.
152,517 S.F.

15.64 ACRES (681489 S.F.)SITE AREA:

CITY OF ARLINGTONJURISDICTION:

CC - COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL

10' WIDE STALLS
EXISTING PARKING PROVIDED:

NO. OF STALLS PER 1000 S.F.
OF BUILDING AREA:

TOTAL PARKING
HANDICAP STALLS
9' WIDE STALLS

750 STALLS

5.05 STALLS

63 STALLS
15 STALLS

672 STALLS

LOSS OF (33) STALLS



EXIST.
MEMBERSHIP
COUNTER

0 5' 10' 20' 40'

ARLINGTON
# 668

MG2. All rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced in
any form or by any means without permission in writing from MG2.

COSTCO WHOLESALE PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN
A R L I N G T O N, T E X A S J U N E 7 , 2 0 1 6

600 WEST ARBROOK BLVD.
ARLINGTON, TX 76014

00-1350-13
JUNE 7, 2016

PROPOSED FLOOR
PLAN

DD21.01









 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD13-16R1 (Liv + Arlington, formerly known as 
Sapphire Inspired Living) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-7-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD13-16R1, with a revised Development 

Plan.  

 

PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 

On November 9, 2011, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved Zoning Case  

PD11-10 (Planned Development for Multi-family uses with a Development Plan) with 

multiple stipulations by a vote of 9-0-0.  The Commission also recommended approval of a 

Substitute Landscape Plan (SLP11-4) on approximately 3.44 acres of land zoned Multi-

family (MF-22), for the project formerly known as Center Court Redevelopment.   

 

On January 24, 2012, City Council approved final reading of PD11-10 by a vote of 6-2-0, 

subject to conditions. 

 

On December 4, 2013, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a PD 

for multi-family uses, with a Development Plan by a vote of 9-0-0 for the project formerly 

known as Sapphire Inspired Living.  It was at this time that the project changed from 

market rate housing to student housing and added the northern lot and the two single 

family residential lots. 

 

On January 7, 2014, City Council approved PD13-16 by a vote of 9-0-0. 

 

ANALYSIS 

Request - The applicant requests a revision to the approved development plan to include 

an additional story and requesting an additional four units, on approximately 4.51 acres 

addressed at 107 Hosack Street, 109 Hosack Street, 1001 South Center Street and 206 East 

Mitchell Street, generally located south of East Mitchell Street and east of South Center 

Street. 

 

Current zoning: Planned Development (PD) for multi-family uses, with a Development 

Plan 

 

Requested zoning: Planned Development (PD) for multi-family uses, with a revised 

Development Plan 

 

The subject property is located south of East Mitchell Street and north of Hosack Street, 

between South Center Street and South Mesquite Street.  The site is developed with two 

single-family residences with the remainder currently vacant.  

 

The applicant is proposing a revision to the previously approved design, which allowed the 

development of a four-story, multi-family apartment building with a total of 250-260 units 

catered to students.  It was at this time the project took in the property to the north and 

the two single family lots located on Hosack Street.  

 

The revised development plan proposal at hand requests an additional floor for a total of 

five-stories with a unit count of 264 units.  The units offered will range in size from 500-

square-foot one-bedroom units to 1,350-square-foot four-bedroom units.  The development 



Page 2 of 2 

will be served by a four-story parking garage with roof deck parking, which will 

accommodate 700-724 parking stalls.  The requested revision proposes no changes to any 

of the previously approved site work including landscaping, sidewalks, or parking areas. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Conformity 

The proposed development is a multi-story student housing complex, with a density in the 

range of 55-60 dwelling units per acre. 99 Square Miles – the Comprehensive Plan identifies 

this area of the city as the Downtown University Neighborhood future development area, the 

area appropriate for the highest multi-family density in the city, allowing for up to 100 units 

per acre.  In order to maximize this area’s potential; a mix of residential uses and mixed-

use buildings is encouraged.  There should be retail, educational, office, government, 

cultural, and entertainment venues to serve those living in and around the area. 

This property is also located in the boundary of the Heart of Arlington Neighborhood Action 

Plan.  This plan encourages the development of mixed-use projects in this area.  Higher 

density housing in this area is considered a suitable land use that would help support other 

offices, retail stores, and personal services that would cater to the Heart of Arlington 

neighborhoods. 

The proposed zoning amendment is in conformance with 99 Square Miles – the 

Comprehensive Plan, the Heart of Arlington Neighborhood Action Plan, and other relevant 

plans. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Attached: i. Case Information 

 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 

 iii. Location Map 

 iv. Photos 

 v. Development Plan (18 pages) 

 vi. Letter of Support 

Under separate cover: None 

Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 

 

CITY COUNCIL DATE September 20, 2016 
 

STAFF CONTACTS 

Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP   Shon Brooks, AICP 

Development Planning Manager   Principal Planner 

Community Development and Planning  Community Development and Planning 

817-459-6138     817-459-6514 

Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov   Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov 

 

  

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case PD13-16R1  i-1 

Prepared:   8-23-16     SHON BROOKS 

Applicant: Stark Enterprises represented by Rhonda Singer 

 

Property Owner:  Stark Enterprises represented by Ezra Stark  

 

Sector Plan:  Central 

 

Council District:  5 

 
Allowable Uses: Proposed revision to Planned Development for multi-family at 

58.5 units per acre 
 

Development History: The subject site is a combination of platted tracts of land.  The 

request includes Sapphire Addition, Block A, Lot 1, Sue L. David 

Addition, Lot 1, and the R.A. Mitchell Addition, Block 8, Lots 11 

and 12.  A replat will be required to be filed with the County 

prior to the development of the site.   

   

  On November 9, 2011, SLP11-4 was approved by the Planning 

and Zoning Commission by a vote of 9-0-0. 

 

  On January 24, 2012, City Council approved PD11-10 

requesting a PD for multi-family uses, with a Development Plan 

by a vote of 6-2-0, subject to conditions. 

 

  On January 7, 2014, City Council approved PD13-16 requesting 

a PD for multi-family uses, with a Development Plan by a vote 

of 9-0-0. 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has access from South Center 

Street, South Mesquite Street, and Hosack Street. 

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

South Center 

Street 

60-foot, one-way,  

3-lane undivided,  

Major Arterial 

60-foot, one-way,  

3-lane undivided,  

Major Arterial 

South Mesquite 

Street 

60-foot, one-way,  

3-lane undivided,  

Major Arterial 

60-foot, one-way,  

3-lane undivided,  

Major Arterial 

Hosack Street 

50-foot, 2-lane 

undivided 

Local Street 

50-foot, 2-lane 

undivided 

Local Street 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water is available to the subject site.  Sewer will have to be 

replaced and relocated due to the proposed building 

configuration. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the Johnson Creek drainage basin.  No 

portion of the site is located within the FEMA floodplain and no 

significant drainage impacts are expected to result from 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case PD13-16R1  i-2 

Prepared:   8-23-16     SHON BROOKS 

development of this site, as long as the developer complies with 

all relevant city ordinances. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 1, located at 401 West Main Street, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

Notices Sent: 

Neighborhood  

Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills HOA 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Heart of Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Stratford Court HOA  

 

  Property Owners: 56 

  Letters of Support: 1 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 

 

 

 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case: PD13-16R1   ii-1 

Prepared:   8-23-16     SHON BROOKS 

 

Allowable Uses: Permitted – Planned Development for multi-family at 58.5 

dwelling units per acre 

 



UTA

UTA

RMF-22
UTA

RM-12 RM-12

RM-12

RMF-22
RM-12

RM-12

RMF-22 RMF-22

RMF-22

OC

PD

RM-12

PD-CA

RMF-22

RMF-22

PD13-16

Z04-12/P04-12

HOSACK ST

SC
EN

TE
R

S T

E MITCHELL ST

SMESQUITEST

002000110400114

00805

00110

00113

00105

00900

00112

00304

00202

00901

00111

00914

00909

00908

00101

00115 00117 00119

00911

00902
00906

0030100811

00905
00903

00910

00100

00106

00907

00109

00904

00108

00806

00206

00103

00130

00919

00107

00913

00201

00915

01098

00205

01001

/

LOCATION MAP
PD13-16R1

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 8-19-2016

REVISED DEVELOPMENT PLAN
4.51 ACRES

LVD

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 8040

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD13-16R1 

PD for Multi-family, with a Development Plan 
South of East Mitchell Street and east of South Center Street 

  

View of subject site from the northern boundary, 

View south. 

View of subject site from Hosack Street.  View 

north. 

  

View of property across South Mesquite Center.  

View east. 

View of public hearing signs posted along South 

Center Street.  View south.  

  

 



1001 SOUTH CENTER STREET - CURRENT  5/24/2016 

UNIT TYPE Total Units Total Beds Total % 

STUDIO/EFFICIENCY 0 0 0% 

1 BEDROOM 24 24 9% 

2 BEDROOMS 82 164 32% 

3 BEDROOMS 17 51 7% 

4 BEDROOMS 130 520 51% 

TOTAL 253 759 100% 

 

1001 SOUTH CENTER STREET - PROPOSED 5th FLR 5/24/2016 

UNIT TYPE Total Units Total Beds Total % 

STUDIO/EFFICIENCY 0 0 0% 

1 BEDROOM 26 26 10% 

2 BEDROOMS 85 170 32% 

3 BEDROOMS 19 57 7% 

4 BEDROOMS 134 536 51% 

TOTAL 264 789 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revision to Development Plan Page 1 of 5

 

PD had maximum of 260 units.  

We are now proposing 264. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 

 

Additional 5th floor plan. Mirrors units 

on 4th floor. 

Revision to Development Plan Page 2 of 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

BLDG 1 - CENTER STREET ELEVATION 

 

Additional 5th floor elevation 

Revision to Development Plan Page 3 of 5



� 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Additional 5th floor elevation 

Revision to Development Plan Page 4 of 5



 

 

Additional 5th floor elevation 

Revision to Development Plan Page  of 5

brookss
Typewritten Text



brookss
Typewritten Text
Previously Approved 	    Development Plan		13 Pages

brookss
Typewritten Text































 

Staff Report  
 

Zoning Case PD12-17R2 (International Leadership of Texas, 
formerly Athlos Academy) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-7-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD12-17R2, with a Development Plan. 

 

PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 

On March 20, 2013, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of Zoning 

Case PD12-17 to allow a Planned Development (PD) for all Estate (E) uses, with a 

Development Plan, by a vote of 9-0-0. 

 

On May 7, 2013, the City Council approved PD12-17 by a vote of 8-0-0.  The Development 

Plan permitted the construction of a charter school. 

 

On July 10, 2014, the Unified Development Code went into effect changing the Estate (E) 

zoning district to Residential Single-Family 15 (RS-15) zoning district. 

 

On December 17, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the 

revised Development Plan to increase the student enrollment by a vote of 7-1-0, with one 

stipulation.  If the improvements that were under construction did not alleviate the 

congestion on West Bardin Road and South Bowen Road to an acceptable level, additional 

measures must be taken to mitigate traffic and eliminate the queue.  A third lane from the 

northern drive aisle to the fire lane behind the school must be constructed, or an equivalent 

solution approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

 

On February 24, 2015 and March 3, 2015, City Council continued Zoning Case PD12-17R1.  

 

On March 17, 2015, City Council continued Zoning Case PD12-17R1 by a vote of  

7-0-0 to the April 14, 2015 meeting, per applicant’s request.   

 

On April 14, 2015, the City Council denied an amendment to the Planned Development 

zoning with a Development Plan requesting an increase in the student enrollment from 

1,206 students to 1,416 students. 

 

ANALYSIS 

Request 

The applicant requests an amendment to the Planned Development to increase the student 

enrollment in the school on approximately 40.812 acres addressed at 4950 South Bowen 

Road, and generally located west of South Bowen Road and south of West Bardin Road. 

 

Current zoning: Planned Development (PD) for all Residential Single-Family 15 (RS-15) 

uses, with a Development Plan 

 

Requested zoning: Amendment to Planned Development (PD) for all Residential Single-

Family 15 (RS-15) uses, with a Development Plan 

 

Existing Site Conditions 

The subject site is developed with a charter school for kindergarten through the eighth 

grade.  The structure is 89,469 square feet in size, located on the northeast portion of the 



Page 2 of 3 

 
site.  Athletic fields are located to the south and west of the structure.  The original request 

in 2013 was approved for 1,206 students.   

 

History 

In 2013, the initial Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) provided to the City was prepared based on 

an anticipated enrollment of 1,206 students.  After school opened in August 2014, 

significant traffic backup was observed at the intersection of South Bowen Road and West 

Bardin Road.  The school worked with the City to develop operational and physical site 

improvements. 

 

Before the end of the year 2014, the school had enrolled 1,383 students and traffic 

congestion continued to be a major concern.  The school then applied for a revision to the 

approved Development Plan through an amendment to the Planned Development zoning.  

With this revision request, the field-measured TIA in January 2015 indicated increased 

delays for both AM and PM peaks.  

 

The request for an increase in student enrollment from 1,206 to 1,416 students was denied 

by Council in April of 2015. 

 

Development Plan Revision 

This amendment is to once again make the same request to increase student enrollment of 

1,416 students for the International Leadership of Texas (ILT), also known as Athlos 

Academy.  With this proposal, ILT is proposing to use four buses to transport the additional 

210 students from an offsite location to this campus.  According to ILT there will be an 

additional eight trips on site, four entering and four exiting by the buses, the impact of the 

additional bus trips representing approximately one percent or less of the total trips 

generated by the school.   

 

After meeting with members of the City Council, ILT has moved seventh and eighth grade 

students offsite to an alternative location pending the approval of an increase in enrollment.  

The subject site will continue serving kindergarten through sixth grades, with seventh and 

eighth grades returning to this campus with the approval of additional enrollment to 1,416 

students. 

 

At the time of this staff report, we do not have a clear understanding on the school 

attendance and their future operational site plan.  The analysis submitted does not address 

the current traffic impacts of the existing 1,206 students on the area roadway network, nor 

any guarantees to ensure adequate operations.  The applicant has not provided an updated 

Traffic Impact Analysis in support of the request despite staff suggestions to provide an 

updated analysis showing background traffic growth and the proposed enrollment increase. 

Staff observations indicate congestion on adjacent roadways in both the AM and PM Peak 

hours.  Additional students would likely increase the delay if no infrastructure improvement 

is anticipated from Interstate Highway 20 to Bowen Road.   

 

Adjacent Land Uses 

This PD is surrounded by properties zoned Residential (R) to the north and east.  The 

property to the south of this PD is also zoned PD and has been developed since 1985 with 

offices for Atos, an information technology provider, after the development plan was 

approved in 1984.  The property to the west is undeveloped land zoned PD for residential 

uses including single family, townhouse, and open space; all at 3.83 dwelling units per acre. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Conformity 

The subject site is located at the intersection of West Bardin Road, a minor arterial, and 

South Bowen Road, a major arterial.  The site is naturally divided into two sections by the 

limits of the Rush Creek flood zone.   



Page 3 of 3 

 
 

The Southwest Sector Plan designates the subject site as “O” (Office), which provides for 

the development of professional office.  Appropriate zoning for this designation is “O”. 

 

The use of the building will not change with this planned development amendment zoning 

change.  Therefore, there is not a proposed use change affecting the area.  In addition, the 

proposed improvements are consistent with the surrounding uses and the Southwest Sector 

Plan. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Attached: i. Case Information 

 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 

 iii. Location Map 

 iv. Photos 

Under separate cover: None 

Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 

 

CITY COUNCIL DATE September 20, 2016 
 

STAFF CONTACTS 

 

Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP   Shon Brooks, AICP 

Development Planning Manager   Principal Planner 

Community Development and Planning  Community Development and Planning 

817-459-6138     817-459-6514 

Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov   Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  

 

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
  

Zoning Case: PD12-17R2  i-1 

Prepared:   8-23-16     SHON BROOKS 

 

Applicant: Athlos Academies represented by Jason Kotter 

 

Owner: International Leadership of Texas represented by Jerry 

McCreight 

Acreage: 40.812 acres 

 

Property Location: 4950 South Bowen Road; generally located west of South 

Bowen Road and south of West Bardin Road 
 

Sector Plan:  Southwest 

 

Council District:  2 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in Attachment ii.  
 

Development History: The subject property is currently platted as Lot 2A, Block 1 of 

the Bowen Addition.  

 

Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

ZA11-6 Subject Site PD for O  Denied 

SUP11-9 Subject Site Gas Drilling Denied 

PD12-17 Subject Site PD for E Approved 

PD12-17R1 Subject Site Revision Denied 

 

 

Transportation: The site currently has access from South Bowen Road and West 

Bardin Road.  

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

South Bowen Road 

100-foot 

4-lane divided 

major arterial 

120-foot 

4-lane divided 

major arterial 

West Bardin Road 

70-foot 

4-lane divided 

minor arterial 

90-foot 

4-lane divided 

minor arterial 

 

Traffic Impact: This amendment is to request a student enrollment of 1,416 

students for the International Leadership of Texas (ILT), also 

known as Athlos Academy.  

 

 With this proposal, ILT is proposing to use four buses to 

transport the additional 210 students from an offsite location to 

this campus.  With the additional eight trips on site, four 

entering and four exiting by the buses, the impact of the 

additional bus trips represents approximately one percent or 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD12-17R2  i-2 

Prepared:   8-23-16     SHON BROOKS 

less of the total trips generated by the school.  The analysis 

submitted does not address the current traffic impacts of the 

existing 1,206 students on the area roadway network.  

 

 An updated Traffic Impact Analysis has not been received. 

Additional students would likely increase the delay if no 

infrastructure improvement is anticipated from Interstate 

Highway 20 to Bowen Road.   

 

Water & Sewer:  Water is available for the site from Bowen Road. 

Sanitary sewer is available on site and along the future Bardin 

Road. 

 

Drainage: This site lies within the Rush Creek drainage basin.  The 

western portion of this site lies within an AE zone designated as 

FEMA regulated floodplain.  No significant drainage impacts are 

anticipated to occur as long as Ordinances are complied with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 9, located at 909 Wimbledon Drive, and 

Fire Station Number 10, located at 3205 Southwest Green Oaks 

Boulevard, provide protection to this site.  The estimated fire 

response time is 5 minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 
School District:  The project is located in Arlington ISD and will have little 

impact upon the district.  
 
Notices Sent: 
Neighborhood  

Associations:   ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills HOA 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Bay Springs HOA 

Emerald Park Neighborhood Organization 

Hunter Bend Neighborhood Association 

Lake Hill Manor HOA 

McKamy Oaks HOA 

Wimbledon Addition HOA 

Southwest Arlington Property Owners (SWAPO) 

 

  Property Owners: 40 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letters of Opposition: 1 



Itemized Allowable Uses 
 

 

Zoning Case:  PD12-17R2   ii-1 

Prepared:   8-17-16     SHON BROOKS 

 

Allowable Uses Planned Development (PD) for all Residential Single-

Family 15 (RS-15) uses, with a Development Plan 

 

Permitted - Dwelling, single-family detached on minimum 

15,000 Square Feet, Non-Residential on minimum 15,000 

square foot lots, Assisted living facility (≤6 residents), 

Community home for disabled persons, Foster family home, 

Foster group homes, Government administration and civic 

buildings helter, Religious assembly, Public or private school, 

Cemetery, Community garden, Public park or playground, Golf 

course, Utility lines, towers or metering station, garage-private, 

and accessory swimming pool-private. 

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) - Assisted living facility (≥7 

residents), Philanthropic institution (other than listed), Bed and 

breakfast inn, Country club, Marina, Airport or landing field, 

Gas well, Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth 

towers ≤100 ft., Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., 

Stealth towers >100 ft. 

 

Conditions (C) – Telecommunication Facilities Building-

mounted antennae and towers, Nursery garden shop or plant 

sales, Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted antennae 

and towers.  

 



RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2
RS-7.2

RS-7.2
RS-7.2

RS-7.2

PD

PD

PD

P87-76

Z81-149/P-84

PD12-17

WE
ST

HA
VE

N 
RD

CHAD DR

W BARDIN RD

BLUE QUAIL DR

S B
OW

EN
 R

D

02706 0270202708
04508

0270402710
02801

04802

04717

05010

05004

0510505104

04804

04718

04806

05002

05008

05006

04708

04716

02500

04706

02 5 0 2

02 4 1 8

02506

05 10 1

05111

04807

02 5 0 3

04805

02501
02 5 0 7

05100
02 5 0 9

04809

04803

02 5 0 502511

04506
02 61 2

02 60 4

02609 04504

02 60 6

02603
0252002611

02900

04547
02601

02522

02 50 8

02 60 0

0450 5

02 60 2

02 60 8

02607

02 61 6

03001

04814

03004

04709

04731

04810

02424

02428

02910

04711

05109
02504

02425

04700

0251 0

03003

04815
04901

04715

02427

04712

05103

02 5 1 5

03000

04701
04704

02700
02400

04950

02404

02416

05102

05108

05106

05000

02605

02 51 4

02908

04811

04719

02517

02613

/

LOCATION MAP
PD12-17R2

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 9-2-2016

AMENDMENT TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT ZONING WITH A
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
40.8175 ACRES

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 200100 Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD12-17R2 

West of South Bowen Road and South of West Bardin Road 
 

  

View of subject site from South Bowen Road. 

View southwest. 

View of adjacent properties to the south. 

  

View of adjacent residential properties across 

South Bowen Road.  View east. 

View of notification sign along South Bowen 

Road.  View south. 

  

 


	Case Location Map
	Work Session Agenda
	Regular Session Agenda
	Regular Session Agenda Items
	AJ Russell Addition SR with attach for 09-07-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Location Map
	11 X 17 Plat

	Southwind Meadows SR with attach for 09-07-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	PD16-15 Costco Wholesale Liquor Addition SR with attach for 09-07-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	PD13-16R1 Liv + Arlington SR with attach for 09-07-16.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan
	Letter of Support

	PD12-17R2 SR with attach for 09-07-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos





